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A Note about This Story 

This story was written by Sir Arthur Conan Doyle. It is an 

adventure about a detective called Sherlock Holmes. A 

friend of Sherlock Holmes, Dr Watson, tells the story. 

Sherlock Holmes is not a policeman. He is a private 

detective. People pay him to find things that are lost or 

stolen. Holmes also solves mysteries and catches criminals. 

This story takes place in 1889. There were no tele¬ 

phones at this time. If someone wanted to send an 

important message quickly, they sent a telegram. 

The Hound of the Baskervilles takes place in the south¬ 

west of England on Dartmoor. Dartmoor is a wild and 

lonely place. Not many people live there. Dartmoor can be 

a dangerous place to live too. 

On Dartmoor there are many high, rocky hills. These 

hills are called tors. There are also pieces of land called 

mires. These are areas of soft, very deep mud with grass 

growing on top. Men and animals who fall into the mires 

can die. 

The People in This Story 

Sherlock Holmes is a very clever 

detective. He lives and works in 

London at 22IB Baker Street. 

Dr Watson is Sherlock Holmes’ 

friend. He helps Sherlock Holmes to 

solve mysteries. 

Dr Mortimer lives near Dartmoor in 

the south-west of England. He is a 

doctor of medicine. 
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Sir Hugo Baskerville was the owner 

of Baskerville Hall in 1645. 

Sir Charles Baskerville was the 

owner of Baskerville Hall at the 

beginning of this story. Dr Mortimer 

thinks Sir Charles was murdered. 

Mr and Mrs Barrymore are servants 

at Baskerville Hall. 

Sir Henry Baskerville is the new 

owner of Baskerville Hall. He has 

come from Canada to live in 

England. 

Mr Jack Stapleton lives in Merripit 

House near Grimpen Mire. 

Stapleton is interested in the plants, 

birds and insects on Dartmoor. 
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Miss Stapleton is Jack Stapleton’s 

sister. She lives in Merripit House. 

She is a tall, beautiful woman with 

dark hair and dark eyes. 

Mr Frankland lives in Lafter Hall 

near Coombe Tracey. He is 

interested in studying the stars and 

has a large telescope. 

Selden is an escaped prisoner from 

Dartmoor Prison. 

Mr Sherlock Holmes 

My name is Doctor Watson. I am writing this story about my 

friend, Mr Sherlock Holmes, the famous detective. 

Sherlock Holmes lives at 22IB Baker Street, in the 

middle of London. My story begins in Baker Street, one 

morning in 1889, when a man knocked on the door. 

I heard the man say, ‘Mr Holmes? My name is Dr 

Mortimer. I need your help.’ 

‘Come in,’ said Holmes. ‘How can I help you?’ 

‘1 have a strange story to tell you, Mr Holmes,’ said Dr 

Mortimer. ‘My story is very strange. Perhaps you will not 

believe me.’ 

2 

The Curse of the Baskervilles 

Dr Mortimer sat down. Sherlock Holmes and I listened to 

his story. 

‘I am a doctor and I work in the country,’ said Dr 

Mortimer. ‘I live and work on Dartmoor. And, as you 

know, Dartmoor is a large, wild place. There is only one 

big house on Dartmoor - Baskerville Hall. The owner of 

the house was Sir Charles Baskerville. I was his friend as 

well as his doctor.’ 

‘I read of his death in The Times newspaper,’ said 

Holmes. 
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‘That was three months ago,’ said Dr Mortimer. ‘The 

newspaper reported his death, but it did not report all 

the facts.’ 

‘Was there something strange about his death?’ asked 

Sherlock Holmes. 

‘I am not certain,’ said Dr Mortimer. ‘There was a story 

about a curse on the Baskerville family. Sir Charles believed 

this old story.’ 

‘A curse?’ I asked. ‘What do you mean?’ 

‘Here is the story,’ said Dr Mortimer. He took a large 

piece of paper out of his pocket. ‘Please read this. It is the 

story of the Curse of the Baskervilles.’ 

Holmes took the paper and read it. ‘It is called The 

Hound of the Baskervilles,’ he said. He showed me the paper. 

This is what it said: 

In the year 1645, Sir Hugo Baskerville was the owner 

of Baskerville Hall. Sir Hugo was a cruel man who did not 

believe in God. Every day he went out hunting and drinking 

with a gang of wild friends. 

A farmer on Dartmoor had a beautiful daughter. Sir 

Hugo wanted to marry the girl, but she was afraid of him. 

The girl’s father told Sir Hugo to stay away from his farm. 

Sir Hugo was very angry. 

One day, when the farmer was working in his fields, Sir 

Hugo rode to the farm with his friends. They caught the girl 

and took her to Baskerville Hall. 

The poor girl was terrified. Sir Hugo locked her in a 

bedroom. Then he started drinking with his gang. When 

he was drunk, he became more wild and cruel. He shouted 

at his men and hit them. 

The frightened girl waited until it was dark. Then she 

opened a window and escaped from Baskerville Hall. 
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Her father’s farm was about four miles away. It was night, 

but she was able to follow the path in the moonlight. She 

started to run across the dark moor. 

Sir Hugo went to the girl’s room. It was empty and Sir 

Hugo was terribly angry. He ran to his men and jumped onto 

the table where they were drinking. He kicked the plates and 

glasses off the table. ‘Fetch the horses!’ he shouted. ‘Get 

the girl!’ 

They all ran outside and jumped onto their horses. Sir 

Hugo kept a pack of wild dogs for hunting. ‘Let the dogs 

find her!’ he shouted. ‘The Devil can take me if I do not 

catch her!’ 

The dogs ran out across the dark moor. Sir Hugo and 

his men rode after them. The dogs barked and Sir Hugo 

shouted. 

Then they heard another noise. It was louder than the 

noise of barking and shouting. The dogs stopped and 

listened. They were afraid. 

The men heard the noise too. It was a loud and deep 

howling sound - the sound of a huge dog howling at the 

moon. The men stopped their horses, but Sir Hugo rode 

on. He wanted to catch the girl. 

Sir Hugo did not catch the girl. Suddenly his horse 

stopped and threw him to the ground. The horse ran away 

in terror. 

In the moonlight, the men saw a strange, black 

animal. It looked liked a dog with huge, fiery eyes. 

But it was as big as a horse. All the men became very 

frightened. 

The huge black dog jumped on Sir Hugo Baskerville and 

killed him. The other men ran away into the night and Sir 

Hugo was never seen again. 

Since that time, many of the sons of the Baskerville family 

have died while they were young. Many of them 

have died strangely. This is the Curse of the Baskervilles. 

The black dog - The Hound of the Baskervilles - still walks 

on the moor at night. 

‘Well, Mr Holmes, what do you think of this story?’ 

asked Dr Mortimer. 

‘I do not think it is a true story,’ said Sherlock Holmes. 

‘Why do you show me this story? Do you believe it?’ 

‘Before Sir Charles Baskerville’s death, I did not believe 

the story,’ Dr Mortimer answered. ‘But Sir Charles believed 

the story. It worried him. He became ill and his heart was 

weak.’ 

‘Why did he believe this story?’ I asked. 

‘Because he saw the hound on the moor,’ answered Dr 

Mortimer. ‘Or, he thought he saw it. When Sir Charles 

told me this story, I told him to take a holiday. I told him 

to go to London for a few weeks and forget all about the 

curse.’ 

‘Did he take a holiday?’ I asked. 

‘No,’ said Dr Mortimer. ‘He planned to go to London 

the following Friday. But, on the Thursday evening, he 

went for a walk on the edge of the moor. And he never 

returned.’ 

‘How did he die?’ I asked. 

‘He died of a heart attack,’ answered Dr Mortimer. ‘His 

servant came to fetch me. I found Sir Charles near the 

house, on the edge of the moor. He was running away from 

something when he died. I am sure of that. I think he was 

terrified of something.’ 

‘Terrified?’ asked Holmes. ‘What was he running away 

from?’ 
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‘I looked at the ground where Sir Charles had walked. I 

saw his footprints,’ said Dr Mortimer. ‘But there were other 

footprints on the ground. They were not the footprints of a 

man. They were the footprints of a gigantic hound!’ 

3 

The Problem 

Holmes and I were surprised. This was a very strange story. 

I did not believe that Sir Charles Baskerville had been killed 

by a gigantic black dog. But I wanted to know the truth. 

‘Who else saw these footprints?’ asked Sherlock Holmes. 

His bright eyes shone and he leant forward in his chair. 

‘No one else saw the footprints,’ answered Dr Mortimer. 

‘There was a lot of rain in the night. By morning, the 

footprints had been washed away.’ 

‘How large were the footprints? Were they larger than 

the footprints of a sheepdog?’ 

‘Yes, Mr Holmes, much larger. They were not the prints 

of an ordinary dog.’ 

‘Also, you say that Sir Charles ran away from this dog? 

How do you know?’ asked Holmes. 

‘The ground was soft,’ answered Dr Mortimer. ‘I saw Sir 

Charles’ footprints outside Baskerville Hall. His footprints 

were close together as he walked along a path at the edge 

of the moor. Then he stopped and waited by a wooden 

gate. After that his footprints changed - they became wide 

apart and deep. I am sure he began to run. He ran towards 
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the house. I believe that something came from the moor. 

I believe he saw the Hound of the Baskervilles.’ 

‘Yes, yes,’ said Holmes, ‘but how do you know that Sir 

Charles waited by this wooden gate?’ 

‘Because he smoked a cigar,’ said Dr Mortimer. ‘I saw 

the white cigar ash on the ground.’ 

‘Good,’ said Holmes, ‘good - you are a detective.’ 

‘Thank you,’ said Dr Mortimer, with a smile. 

‘But you believe that Sir Charles was killed by a gigantic 

hound?’ 

‘I know he ran away from something,’ said Dr Mortimer. 

‘1 know I saw those strange footprints of a huge dog. But 

. . .’ He looked at his watch. ‘. . . I am meeting Sir Henry 

Baskerville at Waterloo Station in an hour. Sir Henry 

is Sir Charles’ nephew. He has come from Canada. Sir 

Charles had no children, so Sir Henry is now the owner 

of Baskerville Hall. And now I have a problem.’ 

‘What is your problem?’ asked Holmes. 

‘I believe that Sir Henry is in danger,’ said Dr Mortimer. 

‘Is it safe to take him to Baskerville Hall?’ 

‘I must think,’ said Sherlock Holmes. ‘Stay in London 

tonight. Come and see me again tomorrow morning. Please 

bring Sir Henry with you.’ 

‘I shall do so,’ said Dr Mortimer. He stood up. ‘Now I 

must go to meet Sir Henry at Waterloo Station. Good day.’ 

When Dr Mortimer had left, Holmes said to me, ‘We 

have a problem here, Watson. There are three questions. 

What is the crime? Who did it? How was it done?’ 
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Sir Henry Baskerville 

The next morning, Dr Mortimer brought Sir Henry 

Baskerville to Baker Street. Sir Henry was about thirty 

years old. He was not tall, but he was broad and strong. 

He looked like a boxer. 

‘How do you do, Mr Holmes,’ said Sir Henry. ‘I arrived 

in London yesterday and two strange things have happened 

already.’ 

‘Please sit down, Sir Henry,’ said Holmes. ‘Tell me what 

has happened.’ 

‘No one knows that I am staying at the Northumberland 

Hotel,’ said Sir Henry. ‘But I have received a letter. Here is the 

letter. You see, the words are cut from a newspaper 

except for the word “moor”.’ 

YdUE LTFiEi is| INI 
1)A>'GI'K 

AWAY PR() 
THB Alo(?Af 

‘The words are cut from The Times newspaper,’ said 

Holmes. 

‘I believe he save the Hound of the Baskervilles. 
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‘But how did this person know where I am staying?’ 

asked Sir Henry. 

‘I do not know,’ said Holmes. ‘But you said that two 

strange things have happened. What is the other strange 

thing?’ 

‘I have lost a boot,’ said Sir Henry. ‘Someone has stolen 

one of my boots at the hotel.’ 

‘One of your boots?’ asked Holmes. ‘Someone took 

only one?’ 

‘Yes,’ answered Sir Henry. ‘The boots are new. I bought 

them yesterday and I have never worn them. But why take 

only one?’ 

‘That is a very good question,’ said Holmes. ‘I would like 

to visit your hotel. Perhaps I shall find the answer.’ 

‘Then, please join us for lunch,’ said Sir Henry. ‘Now, 

if you will excuse me, I have some other business. Shall 

we meet at two o’clock for lunch at the Northumberland 

Hotel?’ 

‘We shall come at two,’ said Holmes. 

Sir Henry Baskerville and Dr Mortimer left the house 

and walked along Baker Street. Sherlock Holmes watched 

them through the window of his study. 

‘Quick, Watson, we must follow them,’ said Holmes. 

I put on my hat and followed Holmes into the street. 

‘Why are we following them?’ I asked in surprise. 

‘Because, my dear Watson, someone else is also follow¬ 

ing them,’ said Holmes. ‘Look! There is the man. There in 

that cab!’ 

I looked where Holmes was pointing. A horse-drawn cab 

was moving slowly along the street. A man with a black 

beard was sitting in the cab. He was watching Sir Henry 

and Dr Mortimer as they walked towards Oxford Street. 
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The man with the black beard turned round as Holmes 

pointed at him. He saw us and shouted to the cab driver, 

‘Drive! Drive quickly!’ The cab driver whipped the horse 

and the cab disappeared round a comer. 

‘I think we have the answer to one of our questions,’ said 

Holmes. ‘That man with the black beard followed Sir Henry 

to the Northumberland Hotel. He is the man who sent the 

letter.’ 
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The Stolen Boot 

We arrived at the Northumberland Hotel at ten minutes 

to two. Sir Henry Baskerville was talking to the hotel 

manager. 

‘Two boots in two days,’ Sir Henry said loudly. ‘Two 

boots have disappeared from my room - one new boot and 

one old boot.’ 

‘We shall look everywhere, sir,’ said the manager. ‘We 

shall find your stolen boots.’ 

Sir Henry was silent while we ate lunch. He was angry 

about his stolen boots. 

‘Tell me, Mr Holmes,’ said Dr Mortimer. ‘Is it safe for 

Sir Henry to go to Baskerville Hall?’ 

‘It is safer than staying in London,’ said Holmes. ‘Do you 

know that a man followed you this morning?’ 

‘Followed us!’ said Dr Mortimer in surprise. ‘Who 

followed us?’ 

‘A man with a thick black beard,’ said Holmes. ‘Do you 

know a man with a black beard?’ 

‘Yes, I do,’ replied Dr Mortimer. ‘The servant at 

Baskerville Hall has a thick black beard. His name is 

Barrymore. I can’t think why he is following us. But I am 

sure Sir Henry is in danger. It is better if Sir Henry stays here 

in London.’ 

‘No. You are wrong,’ said Holmes. ‘There are millions of 

people in London. We cannot watch them all. There are not 

as many people on Dartmoor. Everyone will notice someone 

who is a stranger.’ 

‘But this man may not be a stranger,’ said Dr Mortimer. 

‘I agree,’ said Holmes. ‘That is why Sir Henry must 

not stay at Baskerville Hall alone. I myself will be busy in 

London, but my good friend Dr Watson will go with you to 

Dartmoor.’ 

‘Oh . . . yes, of course,’ I said, ‘I will certainly go to 

Dartmoor.’ 

‘Thank you, Dr Watson,’ said Sir Henry. ‘You will be 

very welcome at Baskerville Hall.’ 

‘Good,’ said Holmes. ‘Now, Sir Henry, tell me about the 

other boot which has been stolen.’ 

‘It is one of an old pair of boots,’ said Sir Henry. 

‘How strange,’ said Holmes. ‘And, tell me Sir Henry, if 

you die, who will become the owner of Baskerville Hall?’ 

‘I don’t know,’ replied Sir Henry. ‘Sir Charles had 

two brothers - my father, who went to Canada, and a 

younger brother called Roger. But Roger never married 

and he died in South America. I have no living relatives. 

I don’t know who will get all my money if I die today.’ 

‘And, may I ask, how much money do you have?’ 
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‘Certainly, Mr Holmes. Sir Charles left me a fortune of 

one million pounds,’ said Sir Henry. 

‘Many men will murder their best friend for a million 

pounds,’ said Holmes. 
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Baskerville Hall 

On Saturday morning, Sherlock Holmes came with me to 

Paddington Station. 

‘This is a dangerous business, Watson,’ he said. ‘Stay 

near to Sir Henry. Do not let him walk on the moor alone 

at night.’ 

‘Don’t worry, Holmes,’ I said. ‘I have brought my army 

revolver.’ 

‘Good,’ said Holmes. ‘Write to me every day. Tell me 

what you see and hear. Tell me all the facts - everything.’ 

I said goodbye to Sherlock Holmes and met Sir Henry 

Baskerville and Dr Mortimer at the station. The train 

journey to Devon took three hours. We looked out of 

the windows at the green countryside. At last, we reached 

Dartmoor. Then the countryside changed from green to 

grey and we saw broken hills of black rock. 

We got off the train at the small station in Grimpen 

Village. A driver was waiting with a carriage and horses to 

take us to Baskerville Hall. As we rode along the narrow 

country road, I saw a soldier on a horse. The soldier was 

carrying a gun and was watching the road. 

I spoke to the driver. ‘Why is that soldier guarding the 

road? Is there some trouble?’ 
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‘Yes, sir,’ the driver replied. ‘A prisoner has escaped 

from Dartmoor Prison. He’s a very dangerous man. His 

name is Selden. He is a dangerous murderer.’ 

I looked across the empty moor. A cold wind blew and 

made me shiver. Holmes believed that someone wanted 

to murder Sir Henry Baskerville. Now, another murderer 

was out on the moor. I felt that this lonely place was very 

dangerous. 1 wanted to go back to London. 

There were thick trees all round Baskerville Hall. It 

looked like a castle. It stood alone on the empty moor. 

We stopped outside Baskerville Hall. ‘I must leave you 

here,’ said Dr Mortimer. ‘I have a lot of work to do. And my 

wife is waiting for me at home.’ 

‘I hope you will come to dinner very soon,’ said Sir 

Henry. 

‘I will,’ said Dr Mortimer. ‘And if you ever need me, send 

for me at any time - day or night.’ Then Dr Mortimer rode 

away in the carriage. 

A man with a thick black beard and a pale face came out 

of the house. He greeted Sir Henry. 

‘Welcome to Baskerville Hall, sir. I am Barrymore. I 

have been a servant here for many years. My wife and I 

have prepared the house for you. Shall I show you around 

the house?’ 

‘Yes please, Barrymore,’ said Sir Henry. ‘This is Dr 

Watson. He will be my guest for a few days.’ 

‘Very good, sir,’ said Barrymore. He took our cases into 

the house. 

I looked carefully at Barrymore. Was he the man with a 

black beard who had followed Sir Henry in London? I was 

not sure. 

Mr and Mrs Barrymore had looked after the house well. 

24 

Everything was in order. But the house was a cold and lonely 

place. There was trouble here. 

That night I wrote a letter to Sherlock Holmes. I told 

him all that I had seen and heard. While I was writing, 

I heard a sound - a woman crying. The only woman in 

the house was Mrs Barrymore. I wondered why she was so 

unhappy. 
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The Stapletons of Merripit House 

At breakfast next morning, I asked Sir Henry, ‘Did you hear 

a woman crying in the night?’ 

‘I heard a sound like crying,’ said Sir Henry. ‘But I 

thought it was the wind on the moor.’ 

Sir Henry had many papers to read. I left him sitting at 

his desk and went for a walk on the moor. 

I walked for two or three miles across the empty moor. 

Then, behind me, I heard a voice call, ‘Dr Watson!’ I looked 

round. I thought it was Dr Mortimer. But I saw a stranger 

walking towards me. 

‘My name is Stapleton,’ said the man. ‘How do you do, 

Dr Watson. I saw Dr Mortimer this morning and he told me 

your name. I have heard about you. You are the friend of the 

famous detective, Sherlock Holmes, aren’t you?’ 

‘Yes, Mr Stapleton, I am,’ I said. 

‘And is Mr Holmes staying at Baskerville Hall too?’ 

asked Stapleton. ‘Is he interested in Dartmoor?’ 

‘Mr Holmes is in London,’ I said. ‘He is a busy man.’ 

‘Of course,’ said Stapleton. ‘Please come and see my 
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house. It’s very near here. I live with my sister.’ 

Stapleton led me along a narrow path across a wide, flat 

part of the moor. The land around us was a strange, green 

colour. We walked towards a hill of grey rock. 

‘Be very careful, Dr Watson,’ said Stapleton. ‘Stay on 

the path. We are in the Great Grimpen Mire. There is a sea 

of soft mud underneath the grass. If you fall in, you will never 

get out again.’ 

‘Thank you for telling me,’ I said. ‘But why do you live 

here? It is a dangerous and lonely place.’ 

‘I am a naturalist. I study nature,’ said Stapleton. ‘There 

are many interesting flowers and birds on the Great Grimpen 

Mire. And there are some unusual animals on Dartmoor.’ 

At that moment we heard a strange sound. It was a deep 

howling sound - the sound of a large dog. It came from some 

distance away. 

‘Stapleton! Is that the sound of a dog?’ I asked. 

‘It is only the sound of the wind,’ said Stapleton. ‘The 

wind blows through the rocks and makes strange sounds. 

But here is my house - Merripit House on the moor.’ He 

pointed to the long, low farmhouse which we could see 

near the hill. ‘And my sister is coming to meet us.’ 

Miss Stapleton was a very attractive woman. She was 

slim and tall, with beautiful dark eyes. I thought she looked 

very different from her brother. She had dark hair, but her 

brother had fair hair. They were both about thirty years 

old. Stapleton looked a little older. He was a small, thin, 

clean-shaven man, with a long face. 

‘How do you do, Miss Stapleton,’ I said. ‘Your brother 

has told me about the Great Grimpen Mire and the unusual 

flowers and birds. Did you hear that strange sound a 

moment ago? Does the wind often make this sound?’ 

26 
I thought Miss Stapleton looked very different from 

her brother. 



‘I heard nothing,’ Miss Stapleton said quickly. She 

looked at her brother and I saw fear in her eyes. 

Her brother looked at her angrily. ‘Let us show Dr 

Watson our house,’ he said. 

1 stayed for a short time. Stapleton showed me his 

collection of flowers and butterflies. 

‘I will come to Baskerville Hall to visit Sir Henry phis 

afternoon,’ said Stapleton. ‘Will you tell him?’ 

‘Of course,’ I replied. ‘Now, if you will excuse me, I must 

go back to Baskerville Hall. I hope to see you again soon.’ 

‘Stay on the path,’ said Stapleton. ‘Remember the Great 

Grimpen Mire. Many men have died in it.’ 

Miss Stapleton walked outside with me. She spoke 

quickly, in a quiet voice. ‘Dr Watson, I want to tell you 

about the strange sound you heard. The people here say 

that it is the sound of the Hound of the Baskervilles. They 

say it killed Sir Charles and now it will kill Sir Henry. But, 

please, do not tell my brother that I spoke to you. Now, go 

back to London. Go back today!’ 

She went into the house quickly. I walked along the 

narrow path slowly, thinking about what she had said. 
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Dr Watsons First Report 

Baskerville Hall 

Dartmoor 

13 October 1889 

My Dear Holmes, 

I wrote and told you about Baskerville Hall and the 

people who live here. Now I have more facts to tell you. 

First, I will draw a map of the area. It will help you to 

understand my story. 

Baskerville Hall is about two miles south-west of 

Grimpen Village. I walk to the village to post letters. 

There are trees all round the Hall and a long avenue 

leads to a small summer-house in the garden. Sir Charles 

Baskerville died near the summer-house. I have marked the 

gate on the map. It is where Sir Charles stood and smoked a 

cigar. The gate opens onto the moor. 

I have told you about the neighbours. Dr Mortimer lives 

nearby, about half-way between the villages of Grimpen and 

Coombe Tracey. 

I have met the Stapletons. Their house is about three 

miles from the Hall. It is on the other side of High Tor. 

There is one man I have not met. But Dr Mortimer has 

told me about him. His name is Mr Frankland and he lives 

at Lafter Hall. He has a large telescope and is interested in 

astronomy. He uses his telescope to look at the stars. 

In the past few days, he has not looked at the stars. He has 

looked at the moor. He is watching the moor because the 

police have not caught the murderer, Selden. Mr Frankland 
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watches the moor looking for strangers. But I do not think 

that Selden is hiding on the moor. There is no food and the 

weather is now very cold. 

Sir Henry is worried about the Stapletons. He thinks 

that the murderer may break into their house. He has visited 

Miss Stapleton several times and they have become good 

friends. But Mr Stapleton is a strange man. He does not like 

Sir Henry visiting his sister. 

Now, here is some news about Barrymore, the servant at 

Baskerville Hall. He looks like the man we saw in the 

carriage in London. You remember - the man who followed 

Sir Henry and Dr Mortimer to Baker Street. I told Sir Henry 

what I thought and he called Barrymore and asked him, 

‘Have you been to London recently?’ 

Barrymore says he has never been to London in his 

life Also, Sir Henry’s question made him angry. He said 

he wanted to leave Baskerville Hall. 

Sir Henry said he was sorry. He gave Barrymore some 

clothes and Barrymore was pleased. Barrymore and his wife 

thanked Sir Henry very much for the clothes. 

Then, last night, 1 saw something very strange. In the 

middle of the night I heard footsteps and I looked out of 

my bedroom door. I saw Barrymore with a candle. I saw 

him walk to the end of the corridor. He stopped at the large 

window which looks out over the moor. He held the candle 

to the window and moved it backwards and forwards. 

I went to the window of my own room and looked 

out across the moor. I saw a light moving backwards and 

forwards. It was somewhere near High Tor and it was clearly 

a signal. But a signal for what? 
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The Light On The Moor 

Baskerville Hall 

Dartmoor 

15 October 1889 

My Dear Holmes, 

I am now able to answer the question at the end of my 

last letter. I know why Barrymore signalled with a candle. 

First, let me tell you about Sir Henry and Miss Stapleton. 

I told you that they are very friendly. I have found out that 

Sir Henry is in love with her. The truth is he wants to 

marry her. 

Yesterday morning he said to me, ‘I am going to see Miss 

Stapleton. I want to go alone.’ 

‘But Mr Holmes told me to stay with you,’ I said. ‘You 

must not go across the moor on your own.’ 

‘I shall go alone,’ said Sir Henry, and he went out. 

I did not know what to do. I waited for ten minutes, then 

I decided to follow him. I did not see everything, but this is 

what happened. 

Sir Henry met Miss Stapleton on the moor. He asked 

her to marry him - he told me this afterwards. They walked 

towards Merripit House to see Mr Stapleton. They met him 

outside the house. Sir Henry told Stapleton the news. 

I reached High Tor before Sir Henry met Stapleton, 

so I saw what happened next. I saw Sir Henry talking to 

Stapleton. Suddenly Stapleton became wild and angry. He 

shouted at Sir Henry. Then he took his sister’s hand and 

pulled her towards Merripit House. 
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Sir Henry turned away and walked back towards the 

Hall. He saw me by High Tor. He was not angry that I had 

followed him. 

‘Watson,’ he said, ‘that man is mad. I told him that I 

want to marry his sister. He shouted at me. He told me never 

to see her again. I think he is mad.’ 

I said nothing and we walked back to the Hall. That 

afternoon, Stapleton came to the Hall. He wanted to speak 

to Sir Henry. He kept saying, ‘I am sorry. I was very rude.’ 

Then he invited Sir Henry to dinner at Merripit House on 

Friday night. 

Now I will tell you the story of Barrymore. I told Sir 

Henry that I had seen Barrymore signal with a candle. Sir 

Henry said, ‘We will wait for him tonight. If he signals again, 

we will catch him.’ 

Sir Henry and I did not go to bed. We sat waiting in 

Sir Henry’s study until two o’clock in the morning. Then 

we heard footsteps outside the study. We listened. The 

footsteps went upstairs. 

Sir Henry and I waited for two more minutes. Then 

we opened the door quietly, and went upstairs. We saw 

Barrymore by the large window at the end of the corridor. 

He had a candle in his hand and he was waving the candle 

in front of the window. 

‘What are you doing, Barrymore?’ Sir Henry shouted. 

Barrymore almost dropped the candle. He looked 

frightened. ‘Nothing, Sir Henry,’ he said. ‘I’m checking the 

window, that’s all.’ 

‘You are signalling to someone on the moor,’ said Sir 

Henry. ‘Who is outside? Tell me!’ 

‘No one, sir,’ said Barrymore. 

‘Tell me,’ said Sir Henry, ‘or you shall leave this house 
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tomorrow. Tell me now!’ 

‘Sir Henry,’ said another voice, ‘please don’t be angry 

with my husband. It is my fault.’ 

We turned and saw Mrs Barrymore. She was standing at 

the top of the stairs, holding her hands tightly together. 

‘My brother is outside, sir,’ she said. ‘My brother is 

Selden, the man who escaped from prison.’ 

‘Selden - the murderer?’ I said. ‘And why do you signal 

to him at night?’ 

‘My husband takes him food and clothes,’ said Mrs 

Barrymore. ‘We signal to tell him my husband is coming.’ 

‘I understand,’ said Sir Henry. ‘He is your brother; you 

must try to help him. Go to your room. We will talk about 

this in the morning.’ 

The Barrymores left the room. 

Sir Henry turned and spoke to me. ‘I am sorry for 

them, but Selden is a murderer. I must try to catch 

him.’ 

‘Look!’ I said. ‘Look out of the window. There is a light 

on the moor.’ 

Sir Henry looked. A small light was shining on the moor. 

It was near High Tor. 

‘That’s him!’ said Sir Henry. ‘Come, Dr Watson, we will 

go to that light. Bring your revolver.’ 

We put on our coats quickly and went out onto the 

moor. The moon was bright and so we could see the path 

across the moor. Also, we could see the signal light. It was 

about a mile away. 

‘There!’ said Sir Henry. ‘Selden is there. Hurry!’ 

I followed Sir Henry along the path across the moor. I 

was worried. I did not want Sir Henry to go far on the moor 

at night. 
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At that moment, we heard a strange sound. It was a deep 

howling sound. It came from some distance away. 

‘What’s that?’ asked Sir Henry. There was fear in 

his voice. 

I was afraid too. ‘It sounds like a dog,’ I said. ‘It sounds 

like a very large dog. Shall we turn back?’ 

‘No,’ said Sir Henry. ‘We are nearly there. Look!’ 

In front of us, we saw the signal light clearly. It came 

from a lamp which stood on a rock. Beside the rock was a 

man, but the man did not see us. He was looking in the other 

direction. 

Again we heard that deep howling sound - the sound of 

a huge dog. The sound was much nearer now. We heard the 

sound again. It was coming nearer all the time! The man by 

the rock heard the sound as well. He picked up the lantern 

and jumped on the rock. He looked one way, then the other. 

Suddenly he jumped off the rock and started to run. 

He ran towards High Tor. He was running away from 

us. But he was not running away because he saw us. He was 

running away from something else which we could not see. 

‘Quick, Dr Watson, follow him!’ shouted Sir Henry. 

‘Get your revolver ready.’ 

We ran along the narrow path. Near us, we heard the 

deep howling sound. It was very near and very loud. Then 

we heard a scream. We stopped. 

‘Be careful, Dr Watson,’ said Sir Henry. ‘Let us go 

forward slowly.’ 

The night was silent. We walked forward slowly. There 

was something, or someone, lying near the bottom of the 

Tor. We went over to it. 1 held my revolver in front 

of me. 

We found the body of a man at the foot of the Tor. 
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The man had fallen from the rocky hill. He was dead. His 

neck was broken. 

We were sure that the man was Selden. He was dressed 

in Sir Henry’s old clothes - the clothes that Sir Henry had 

given to Barrymore. 

I have one last strange thing to tell you, Holmes. 

I looked up at the Tor from which Selden had fallen. Up 

above, at the top of the Tor, stood a tall, thin man. I saw him 

only for a moment. Then he disappeared into the night. But 

I know I have seen him before. I will search for this strange 

man who walks on the moor at night. 

10 

The Man On The Moor 

Who was the man I had seen on High Tor? Was it the 

man Holmes and I had seen in London? But I was sure 

that the man on High Tor did not have a beard. Sir 

Henry did not see the man on the Tor and 1 said nothing to 

him. 

There was nothing we could do for Selden. We went 

back to the house. What had Selden run away from? What 

had he seen? What had we heard? Was it the Hound of the 

Baskervilles? I felt safer in Baskerville Hall than out on the 

moor at night. Sir Henry felt the same. 

In the morning, we sent for the police. They took 

Selden’s body away. 

Sir Henry told the Barrymores what had happened. 

But he did not speak about the strange sounds we had 

heard. Mrs Barrymore cried and covered her face with a 

handkerchief. Mr Barrymore said, ‘It had to end. Poor 

Selden could not have lived on the moor in winter. It is 

far too cold.’ 

‘Please forget what I said last night,’ Sir Henry told 

them. ‘I want you to stay at Baskerville Hall.’ 

‘Thank you, sir. We will,’ said Barrymore. 

I went to my room and wrote a long report to Sherlock 

Holmes. Then I decided to go for a walk, but I did not want 

to walk on the moor. I did not like the moor. 

Usually, I posted my letters to Holmes in Grimpen 

Village. But today I decided to walk to Coombe Tracey, 

the village to the south. It took me an hour to walk there 

along the road. On the way, I saw Stapleton. 
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‘I heard you caught the escaped murderer,’ said 

Stapleton. ‘I will look forward to hearing the story from 

Sir Henry at dinner tomorrow.’ 

‘Sir Henry is looking forward to dining with you and 

your sister tomorrow,’ I replied. 

‘And so is my sister,’ Stapleton said coldly. ‘I look 

forward to seeing Sir Henry tomorrow at eight o’clock.’ 

‘I will tell him,’ I said. ‘Good day.’ 

I walked on to Coombe Tracey and posted my letter. 

I saw a large house outside the village and asked who 

lived there. 

‘That is Mr Frankland’s house,’ the village shopkeeper 

told me. 

Dr Mortimer had told me about Mr Frankland - and 

about Mr Frankland’s interest in the stars. I decided to visit 

the gentleman and ask to see his telescope. 

Mr Frankland was standing by his garden gate. He was a 

red-faced, elderly man with white hair. 

‘Good day,’ I said, ‘my name is Watson.’ 

‘Dr Watson?’ asked Mr Frankland. 

‘Yes,’ 1 replied. 

‘I heard that you caught Selden last night on the moor,’ 

said Mr Frankland. ‘I nearly caught him myself.’ 

‘How did you do that?’ I asked in surprise. 

‘With my telescope. Come and see.’ 

Mr Frankland showed me into his house. I was very 

interested in his telescope. It was very large and powerful. 

‘I saw a man on the moor a number of times,’ said Mr 

Frankland. 

‘Why did you not tell the police?’ I asked. 

‘I was not sure that it was the murderer,’ he replied. ‘I 

began to think that perhaps there were two men on the 
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moor. But why would anyone want to live out on the moor? 

There is no food and the weather is cold. Then, yesterday, I 

saw something.’ 

‘What did you see?’ I asked. 

‘I saw someone taking food out on the moor,’ answered 

Mr Frankland. 

‘At night?’ I asked. I thought of Barrymore and his signal 

light. Perhaps Mr Frankland had seen Barrymore taking 

food and clothing out to Selden. 

‘No,’ said Mr Frankland. ‘I saw a boy taking food during 

the day - and letters.’ 

‘Letters?’ I asked. ‘Are you sure?’ 

‘Very sure,’ said Mr Frankland, ‘because I know the boy. 

I asked the postman and learnt that the boy collects letters 

every day.’ 

‘And where does he take them?’ I asked. 

‘Look through the telescope,’ said Mr Frankland. ‘Look 

at that old farmhouse to the right of High Tor. That is High 

Tor Farm. Someone lives there, but I do not know who. He 

is a stranger.’ 

I looked through the telescope at High Tor. On the 

left of the Tor I saw the roof of Merripit House, where the 

Stapletons lived. On the right, I saw an old farmhouse. The 

roof was broken and so was one wall. But I saw smoke 

coming from the chimney. 

‘Thank you, Mr Frankland,’ I said. Whoever lives there 

is not Selden. Selden is dead.’ 

I said goodbye to Mr Frankland. Then I decided to walk 

across the moor and look at old High Tor Farm. It was a mile 

or two away and I reached it late in the afternoon. The sun 

was low in the sky and the air was cold. 

I walked up to the farmhouse slowly. The door was 
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broken and I looked inside. The farmhouse was empty and 

silent. 

Part of the farmhouse was dry, where the roof was not 

broken. There was a wood fire on the floor and a bed in 

the comer. A lamp stood on a table with a pile of papers 

next to it. 

I went into the farmhouse carefully. I put my hand into 

my jacket pocket where I kept my army revolver. I walked 

slowly to the table and looked at the pile of papers. I saw 

one of my own letters. Someone had stolen one of my own 

letters! 

Who lived in the farmhouse? Was it the man with the 

black beard? Was it the man I had seen on the Tor? 

I soon found out, as I heard the sound of footsteps 

outside. I took my revolver out of my pocket and turned 

towards the door. A tall, thin man stood in the doorway 

with his back to the setting sun. I could not see his face. 

‘It is a lovely evening, isn’t it Watson?’ the man said. 

The man was Sherlock Holmes. 

11 

High Tor Farm 

‘Holmes!’ I said in surprise. ‘What are you doing here?’ 

‘I am watching,’ said Holmes. ‘I am waiting for the 

murderer to show himself.’ 

‘The murderer? Do you mean Selden? Selden is dead.’ 

‘I know. I was on the Tor last night and saw what 

happened,’ Holmes said. ‘Someone wanted to kill Sir Henry 

Baskerville, not Selden.’ 
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‘But how long have you been here?’ I asked. ‘And why 

are you here in secret?’ 

‘I came here on the same day as you,’ answered Sherlock 

Holmes. ‘I came in secret because the murderer is clever. He 

will not show himself if he knows I am here.’ 

‘And what about my letters?’ I asked. ‘Have you read 

them?’ 

‘Yes, I have,’ Holmes replied. ‘They were sent to me 

from London. But I have not read your report of last night. 

Come. Tell me about it as we walk to Baskerville Hall. 

He left the farmhouse and I walked quickly after him. 

The sun had gone down and it was getting dark. A thick 

white mist was rising from the moor. 

‘You are a good detective,’ said Holmes. ‘Tell me, how 

did you find me? How did you know I was at High Tor 

Farm?’ 

‘I did not know it was you,’ I answered. ‘Mr Frankland 

saw you through his telescope. And he saw the boy who 

brought you food and letters. He thought you were Selden, 

the murderer. Also, I saw you last night on the Tor.’ 

‘I see,’ said Holmes. ‘If you saw me, I think the murderer 

of Sir Charles Baskerville saw me too. He will want to kill me 

as well as Sir Henry.’ 

‘So,’ I said, ‘you think that Sir Charles was murdered?’ 

‘I am sure of it,’ said Holmes. ‘Now, stay on the path.’ 

It was dark and the moon had not come up. We had to 

walk carefully. The path went through the Great Grimpen 

Mire and a sea of soft mud lay under the grass on either 

side of us. 

Behind us, we heard that strange sound, the deep 

howling sound I had heard on the moor last night. It made 

me shiver with fear. 

‘What is it, Holmes?’ I asked. ‘Do you know what makes 

that sound.’ 

‘No,’ he answered, ‘but the village people say it is the 

Hound of the Baskervilles. I will not go back to High Tor 

Farm tonight. Come. We must hurry. Keep your revolver 

ready.’ 

We walked quickly along the dark path. I was pleased to 

see the lights of Baskerville Hall in front of us. I was afraid of 

what was behind us - out on the moor, at night. 
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Setting the Trap 

‘Mr Sherlock Holmes,’ said Sir Henry Baskerville, ‘what a 

surprise! Welcome to Baskerville Hall.’ 

‘Thank you,’ said Holmes. ‘But you did not obey my 

orders. Last night you went out on the moor. You were 

nearly murdered!’ 

‘But I did not go alone,’ said Sir Henry. ‘Dr Watson was 

with me. He has a revolver to protect me.’ 

‘And I shall protect you too,’ said Holmes. ‘Next time 

you go out on the moor at night, both Dr Watson and I will 

go with you.’ 

‘The next time . . .’ Sir Henry began. 

‘The next time will be tomorrow night,’ said Holmes. 

‘Dr Watson tells me that you are going to dinner at 

Merripit House on the moor. I believe the Stapletons have 

invited you.’ 
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‘Yes,’ Sir Henry said. ‘And has Dr Watson told you that 

I want to marry Miss Stapleton?’ 

‘Yes, he has,’ said Holmes. ‘Now I would like to ask 

Barrymore some questions.’ 

Sir Henry called for his servant, Barrymore. Barrymore 

came and stood in front of us. Sherlock Holmes looked at 

him carefully. Was this the man with the black beard we had 

seen in London? 

‘Tell me about Sir Charles Baskerville,’ Holmes said to 

Barrymore. ‘Did he often go for a walk at night?’ 

‘No, sir,’ said Barrymore, ‘Sir Charles did not often 

leave the house at night.’ 

‘But, on the night he died, he went for a walk on the edge 

of the moor,’ said Holmes. ‘We know he stood by the gate on 

the edge of the moor for about ten minutes. Was he waiting 

for someone?’ 

‘I’m not sure, sir,’ said Barrymore. ‘I remember that Sir 

Charles received a letter that day.’ 

‘A letter?’ Holmes asked. ‘Why do you remember 

this letter? Did you read it?’ 

‘No, sir,’ Barrymore said. ‘I never read Sir Charles’ 

letters. But Sir Charles usually kept his letters on his desk. 

This letter was unusual. He read it. Then he put it on 

the fire.’ 

‘Oh, so he burnt it,’ Holmes said. ‘Perhaps this letter 

asked him to meet someone. Perhaps he went to this meeting 

and met someone - or something.’ 

‘But why did Sir Charles burn the letter?’ I asked. 

‘Why do people bum letters, Watson?’ asked Holmes. 

‘Often because they have something to hide. But Sir 

Charles was afraid to go out on the moor at night. Dr 

Mortimer told us that Sir Charles believed the story of the 
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Hound of the Baskervilles. Why would he go out on the 

moor, alone, at night? If he was going to meet someone, 

it was someone he knew. But why meet on the edge of the 

moor? Was it a secret meeting?’ 

‘Do you think Sir Charles was murdered by a friend?’ I 

asked. 

‘I think he knew his murderer,’ replied Holmes. ‘And I 

think his murderer is not far away.’ 

After dinner, we sat in the library. There were paintings 

of the Baskerville family hanging on the walls. Some of the 

paintings were very old. 

Sherlock Holmes looked at the paintings carefully. He 

was interested in the painting of Sir Hugo Baskerville, 

dated 1645. 

‘Interesting, Watson, very interesting,’ said Holmes. ‘Here 

is a painting of Sir Hugo, the man who started 

the story of the Hound of the Baskervilles. I am able to 

remember faces. Look at this black beard and the face. Have 

you seen this face before?’ 

‘Yes, Holmes,’ I said. ‘It is the face of the man we saw in 

London. It is the man who followed Sir Henry in a cab!’ 
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The Hound of the Baskervilles 

Holmes got up early the next morning. He went to Grimpen 

Village and sent a telegram. When he returned to Baskerville 

Hall he was excited. ‘We shall go hunting tonight,’ he said, 

‘and Inspector Lestrade from Scotland Yard will come 

with us.’ 

‘Why are we waiting until tonight?’ I asked. ‘You know 

who the murderer is, Holmes. Why can’t we catch him 

before tonight?’ 

‘We must make sure we have the right man,’ Holmes 

said. ‘We must wait. We will catch him tonight!’ 

Inspector Lestrade arrived from London at five o’clock. 

We met him at Grimpen Station. He was a short man, with 

bright eyes. He and Sherlock Holmes were good friends. He 

and Holmes talked together as we drove to Baskerville Hall. 

At half past seven, when Sir Henry left the Hall, we were 

ready. 

Sir Henry walked along the path across the Great 

Grimpen Mire, towards Merripit House. The Stapletons 

had asked him to come to dinner at eight o’clock. 

The three of us followed him - Lestrade, Holmes and I. 

Each of us carried a revolver. We saw Sir Henry go into 

Merripit House. We waited below High Tor, about two 

hundred yards from the house. 

The lights burned brightly in Merripit House and the 

curtains of the dining room were open. We saw Sir Henry 

talking to Stapleton. 

‘Where is Miss Stapleton?’ I said to Holmes. ‘Sir Henry 

has come to see her, not her brother.’ 
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‘Perhaps Stapleton wants to talk to Sir Henry alone,’ 

Holmes said. ‘But, look - the mist is rising. Soon we will 

not be able to see.’ 

I looked around. Thick white mist was rising from the 

Great Grimpen Mire. 

‘Shall we climb up the Tor?’ I asked. ‘Perhaps we will be 

able to see better from above the mist.’ 

We climbed a little way up the Tor. But the mist was so 

thick we could see only a few yards in front of us. 

‘I did not think of this,’ said Holmes. ‘Our plan may fail 

if we cannot see clearly. We must listen for any sounds from 

Merripit House.’ 

We waited in the mist and the moon came up. The white 

moonlight shone through the mist, but we could not see 

Merripit House or the path across the moor. 

We listened. At last we heard a door open, then the 

sound of voices. Stapleton was saying goodnight to Sir 

Henry. Then we heard footsteps below the Tor. Someone 

was walking along a stony part of the path. 

At the same time, we heard another sound. It was the 

sound of a metal chain and came from Merripit House. Then 

we heard the deep howling sound of a huge dog. 

‘The Hound!’ Holmes shouted. ‘Sir Henry! Sir Henry! 

Climb the Tor! We are here on the Tor! Hurry!’ 

Lestrade moved forward to help Sir Henry. But we could 

not see clearly in the mist. j 

‘Keep back!’ Holmes shouted to Lestrade. 

Lestrade cried out and fired his revolver into the mist. 

We saw the yellow flash of the revolver and we heard 

the loud bang. ‘It’s coming!’ Lestrade cried out. He fired 

again. 

In the light of the flash, we saw a huge black shape. 
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Its eyes and jaws were burning bright with fire. It was a 

horrible huge monster. It ran past Lestrade. We heard Sir 

Henry cry out. 

We heard the sound of falling stones. 

Holmes and I both fired our revolvers at the black shape. 

We heard a howl. We fired again and again. Then we moved 

forward carefully and climbed down the Tor. 

Sir Henry was at the bottom of the Tor. He had fallen, 

but he was not hurt. He now stood up carefully. 

‘What was it, Mr Holmes?’ he asked. ‘What was that 

thing in the mist?’ 

Holmes walked along the path, reloading his revolver 

with bullets. ‘We are safe,’ he called back. ‘The dog is 

dead.’ 

I went to look. There on the path lay the largest black 

dog I have ever seen. Fire burned around the dog’s eyes and 

mouth. Blood was pouring from its head. 

‘Could it have killed Sir Henry?’ I asked. 

‘It would have frightened him,’ said Holmes. ‘The path 

across the Great Grimpen Mire is narrow. If he had run 

in the dark, Sir Henry would have fallen into the mire 

and died.’ 

‘But where did it come from?’ I asked. ‘And why is its 

head burning with fire?’ 

‘I believe it was kept in Merripit House,’ said Holmes. 

‘The fire is easy to explain.’ 

He touched the dog’s head with his fingers. ‘It is a special 

paint,’ he said. ‘Come. Let us find the murderer.’ 

We walked back to Merripit House. The door was 

open. Sir Henry went into the house. ‘Miss Stapleton!’ he 

shouted. ‘Where is she? She did not join us for dinner.’ 

A sound came from one of the rooms. Sir Henry pushed 
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the door open. Miss Stapleton lay on the bed. Her hands 

and feet were tied together. There was a cloth tied across 

her mouth. 

Sir Henry cut the rope around her hands. Holmes took 

the cloth from her mouth. 

‘Where is your brother, Miss Stapleton?’ Sir Henry 

asked. 

Miss Stapleton looked at the floor. ‘Gone,’ she said. ‘My 

husband has gone.’ 

‘Your husband!’ shouted Sir Henry. ‘You are Mrs 

Stapleton?’ 

‘Yes, I am his wife,’ she said. ‘But his name is not 

Stapleton. He is the son of your dead uncle, Roger 

Baskerville. He is your cousin.’ 

Out on the moor we heard a terrible cry. We ran outside. 

The mist was thick on the Great Grimpen Mire. The cry 

came again, and then a loud scream. Then silence. 

‘I believe that the Great Grimpen Mire has taken your 

cousin,’ Holmes said to Sir Henry. ‘He has fallen into the 

mire. We shall never find his body.’ 

14 

Back In Baker Street 

‘There are still some things I don’t understand,’ I said to 

Holmes. ‘Tell me - who was Stapleton? Why did he want 

to kill Sir Henry?’ 

‘It is simple, my dear Watson,’ said Holmes. ‘Remember 

Sir Charles had two brothers. The youngest brother, Roger, 

was a bad man. He got into trouble over money and went to 
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South America. He died in Venezuela. He did not marry, so 

no one knew he had a son.’ 

‘And this son called himself Stapleton?’ 

‘Yes, and the son was both bad and clever. He wanted 

the Baskerville money. There were only two Baskervilles left 

alive - Sir Charles and Sir Henry. If they died, Baskerville 

Hall would belong to Stapleton.’ 

‘What about his wife? Why did Stapleton say she was his 

sister?’ 

‘At first, Stapleton wanted her to marry Sir Charles or 

Sir Henry. That was a way of getting the money.’ 

‘What an evil man!’ I said. ‘But she did not want to help 

Stapleton. She tried to warn both of them, didn’t she?’ 

‘Yes, she tried to meet Sir Charles the night he died. 

But Stapleton found out. Stapleton waited for Sir Charles 

and frightened him to death with the black dog. Also, Mrs 

Stapleton sent the note to Sir Henry at the Northumberland 

Hotel. Then Sir Henry fell in love with Mrs Stapleton, so 

Stapleton was worried and angry. At last, Stapleton had to 

tie her up to stop her telling Sir Henry.’ 

‘And Stapleton was the man with the black beard?’ 

‘Yes, he tried to hide his face. He put on a beard when 

he followed Sir Henry in London.’ 

‘What about the missing boots?’ I asked. 

‘The dog and the boots go together,’ Holmes said. 

‘Stapleton knew the silly story about the Hound of the 

Baskervilles. And he knew that Sir Charles believed the 

story. So, Stapleton bought that huge black dog and let it 

walk on the moor at night.’ 

‘But the boots,’ I said. ‘What about the stolen boots?’ 

‘Watson, you are very slow,’ said Holmes. ‘It was a 

hunting dog. Hunting dogs will follow a smell. Stapleton 

wanted some of Sir Henry’s clothes to give to the dog. 

He paid a waiter at the hotel to steal the boots. But the 

first boot did not work because it was new. It did not have 

Sir Henry’s smell. Then, remember, the dog hunted Selden 

because Selden was wearing Sir Henry’s old clothes.’ 

‘What a strange story,’ I said. ‘Stapleton was clever.’ 

‘Yes, my dear Watson,’ said Holmes. ‘I needed your help 

to catch him. Now, why don’t you write about it? Perhaps 

you can call your story The Case of the Stolen Boot?’ 
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Points For Understandin; 

1 

1 Who is telling this story? 
2 What is Sherlock Holmes’ address? 
3 Why had Dr Mortimer come to visit Holmes? 

2 

1 Where does Dr Mortimer live? 
2 Who was Sir Charles Baskerville? 
3 What had happened to Sir Charles? 
4 Tell the story of the Curse of the Hound of the Baskervilles. 
5 Did Sherlock Holmes believe this story? 
6 Where had Dr Mortimer found Sir Charles’ body? 
7 Dr Mortimer found many footprints on the ground. 

How had these footprints been made? 

3 

1 What had happened to the footprints? 
2 How did Dr Mortimer know Sir Charles had waited by the 

wooden gate? 
3 Dr Mortimer is meeting Sir Henry Baskerville. 

(a) Who is he? 
(b) Where is he meeting him? 
(c) Where has he been living? 

4 Where did Sherlock Holmes tell Dr Mortimer to stay that 
night? 

5 What did Sherlock Holmes tell Dr Mortimer to do the next 
day? 

6 ‘There are three questions,’ said Holmes. What are the three 
questions? 
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4 

1 How old was Sir Henry? What did he look like? 
2 Sir Henry had received a letter that morning. Describe the 

letter and say why it was unusual. 
3 What strange thing had happened when Sir Henry wa:s in his 

hotel bedroom? 
4 ‘Quick, Watson, we must follow him.’ 

(a) Who did Holmes and Watson follow? 
(b) Why did they follow him? 

5 Who sent the letter to Sir Henry Baskerville? 

5 

1 Why was Sir Henry angry at lunch? 
2 Why did Holmes think it was safer for Sir Henry to go to 

Dartmoor than to stay in London? 
3 Holmes wanted someone to go with Sir Henry to Baskerville 

Hall. Who was this? 
4 Who will become the owner of Baskerville Hall if Sir Henry 

dies? 
5 How much money did Sir Henry have? 

_6_ 
1 Holmes told Watson to stay near to Sir Henry. 

(a) What must Sir Henry not do at night? 
(b) What had Watson brought with him? 

2 On the way to Baskerville Hall, Watson saw a soldier 
guarding the road. Why was the soldier guarding the h>ad? 

3 Why did Watson want to go back to London? 
4 Why did Dr Mortimer leave Sir Henry and Watson? 
5 ‘I am Barrymore,’ said the man. 

(a) Who was Barrymore? 
(b) Describe Barrymore. 
(c) Did Watson think he had seen Barrymore bel°re? 

6 What did Watson hear at night while he was writing a letter 
to Holmes? 
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7 10 

1 Who did Stapleton say he lived with? 

2 What happened to anyone who fell in the Great Grimpen Mire? 

3 As Watson and Stapleton were walking to Stapleton’s house, 

they heard a strange sound. 

(a) What did Watson say made the sound? 

(b) What did Stapleton say made the sound? 

4 Describe Miss Stapleton. Did Watson think she looked like her 

brother? 

5 Miss Stapleton walked outside with Dr Watson. 

(a) What did she tell him had made the strange sound? 

(b) What did she tell Watson to do? 

8 

1 What did Sir Charles do while he stood by the gate? 

2 Dr Mortimer told Dr Watson about Mr Frankland. 

(a) Where does Mr Frankland live? 

(b) What does Mr Frankland use to look at the stars? 

(c) Why is Mr Frankland looking at the moor? 

3 Who has Sir Henry become good friends with? 

4 What question did Sir Henry ask Barrymore? What was 

Barrymore’s reply? 

5 What did Sir Henry give Barrymore? 

6 What did Dr Watson see in the middle of the night? 

9 

1 What has Dr Watson found out about Sir Henry? 

2 Sir Henry went out onto the moor alone. What did Dr 

Watson do? 

3 What did Sir Henry tell Dr Watson about Stapleton? 

4 Who was Barrymore signalling to out on the moor? Why was 

he sending a signal? 

5 Why did Sir Henry and Dr Watson go out onto the moor? 

6 What strange sound did they hear? 

7 What did Watson and Sir Henry find lying near the bottom 

of the Tor? 

8 What did Dr Watson see for a moment at the top of the Tor? 
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1 Describe the man Dr Watson had seen on top of the Tor. 

2 ‘I saw a man on the moor a number of times,’ said Mr 

Frankland. 

(a) Why did Mr Frankland not tell the police? 

(b) How many men did Mr Frankland begin to think 

were on the moor? 

3 What was the boy taking out on the moor during the day? 

4 Where was the boy taking the letters to? 

5 Who was the other man on the moor? 

11 

1 When did Holmes come to Dartmoor? 

2 Which other person will the murderer of Sir Henry want to 

murder? 
3 Why was Dr Watson pleased to see the lights of Baskerville 

Hall? 

12 

1 ‘The next time . . .’ Sir Henry began. 

(a) When was Sir Henry going out on the moor again? 

(b) Who was going with him? 

(c) Who was Sir Henry going to visit? 

2 Barrymore told Holmes that Sir Charles had received a letter 

on the day he died. 
(a) What did Sir Charles do after he read the letter? 

(b) What did Holmes think was in the letter? 

3 Dr Watson asks, ‘Do you think Sir Charles was murdered by 

a friend?’ What was Holmes’ reply? 
4 Holmes pointed to a painting of Sir Hugo Baskerville. What 

did Holmes think was interesting about the painting? 

13 

1 Who did Holmes invite to come and join them at Baskerville 

Hall? 
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2 Sir Henry walked across the path to Merripit House. 

(a) Who followed behind him? 

(b) What did they each carry? 

(c) Where did Sir Henry go? 

(d) Where did the three wait? 

3 Why was Holmes afraid their plan might fail? 

4 What sound did they hear coming from Merripit House? 

5 Lestrade fired his gun. Describe what they saw in the light of 
the flash. 

6 What had been killed? How had its face been made to bum 
with fire? 

7 Who was‘Miss Stapleton’? 

8 What happened to Stapleton? 

14 

1 Explain who Stapleton was. 

2 Why did Stapleton want his wife to marry Sir Henry? 

3 Why had Stapleton’s wife tried to warn Sir Charles? 

4 How had Sir Charles died? 

5 Who was the man with the black beard? 

6 Explain why two of Sir Henry’s boots had been stolen from 
his hotel in London. 

7 Why had the dog hunted the murderer, Selden? 

Exercises 

Multiple Choice 

Tick the best answer. 

1 When does this story take place? 

a \Z\ In the nineteenth century. 

b EH In the twentieth century, 

c EH In the twenty-first century. 

2 Who was Sherlock Holmes? 

a EH The man who wrote the story, 

b D A famous detective, 

c CD A famous policeman. 

3 Who was Dr Watson? 

a EH A friend of Sherlock Holmes, 

b EH A man who lived on Dartmoor, 

c EH A police officer. 

4 What was the Hound of the Baskervilles? 

a EH A family pet. 

b EH A family servant, 

c EH A big black dog. 

5 Where was Baskerville Hall? 

a EH In London. 

b EH On Dartmoor, 

c EH In Canada. 

6 Who were the Baskervilles? 

a EH An old and rich family, 

b EH People who kept dogs, 

c EH Hotel owners. 

62 63 



7 Who was Sir Charles Baskerville? 

a EH The man who came to London to see Sherlock Holmes, 

b EH The man who came from Canada to look after Baskerville Hall, 

c EH The man who died of a heart attack on Dartmoor. 

8 Why was Dr Mortimer worried about Sir Henry Baskerville? 

a EH Because Sir Henry had just arrived from Canada. 

b EH Because Sir Henry didn’t know that Sir Charles was dead, 

c EH Because he believed Sir Henry was in danger. 

Words From the Story 

Complete the gaps. Use each word in the box once. 

howl Dartmoor Prison footprints mire hound curse 

gigantic lanterns moor boots cruel naturalist 

JHarttnSor candles revolver 

1 .Dartwow.js (hg name 0f a wild and deserted 

area in the south-west of England. 

2 A.is an area of wild land with few 

trees. Few people live there. 

3 A.is a dog used for hunting and 

racing. In this story it means a very big dog. 

4 A. 

happen to someone. 

is a wish for something bad to 

5 A.is the long loud sound made by a 

wolf and some kinds of dog. 

6 A. 

and animals. 

person likes to hurt other people 
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7 means very big - like a giant. 

8 .are marks made in the ground by the 

feet of men and animals. 

9 A.is a place of soft mud, sometimes 

covered with grass. It can be dangerous if you fall in. 

10 .are footwear that cover your feet and 

ankles, and sometimes your legs. 

11 .is an old-fashioned word for a person 

who studies nature - plants and animals. 

12 .and.are 

lights that people used at night before electricity. 

13 A.is a kind of hand gun. 

14 . .was a place for keeping very 

dangerous criminals such as murderers. 

A Logic Problem 

Read the information. Then complete the tables. 

Sherlock Holmes asks some questions at the Northumberland Hotel. 

He finds out the following: 

1 The receptionist says that a page is missing from the hotel register. 

2 Three people stayed at the hotel on the same day as Sir Henry. 

3 The doorman remembers a Mrs Augusta, a Miss Charlotte, and a 

Mr Platstone. 

4 The housekeeper remembers three pairs of boots - black, brown, 

and green. 
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5 The maid remembers that the other three people stayed in rooms 

18, 19, and 20. 

Holmes needs to answer the questions: 

a Who stayed in which room? 

b What colour were their boots? 

He draws a table, then he talks to the maid again. 

Maid: ‘The two ladies did not stay next to each other. The green boots 

were muddy and I’m sure they were outside room 20. Miss Charlotte 

was very clean and tidy. I don’t think her boots were muddy. And I 

don’t think the black boots were hers either, because they were a very 

large size. That’s all I can tell you.’ 

Holmes: ‘That is more than enough information, thank you.’ 

Room Name Boots ^ 

V_ J 
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Sir Hugo and the Curse of the Baskervilles 

Complete the gaps. Use each word in the box once. 

hunting forward beside stopped Devil dogs moor 

howling dog sound mouth shouted not afraid 

eyes horse gigantic throat fell across 

deaths girl teeth ^ode" found 

The men 1..their horses 2.the 

moor. Their 3.dogs ran 4. 

them. They did 5.catch the 6. 

All of a sudden the horses 7.The 8. 

stopped. They heard a strange 9.It was the 

sound of a dog 10.- a very big 11. 

‘Cowards!’12.Sir Hugo. ‘Are you 13. 

of a dog?’ He rode his horse 14.but the horse 

suddenly stopped and Sir Hugo 15.to the ground. 

The men saw a 16.black dog appear in the 

moonlight. It had fiery red 17.It was almost as 

big as a 18.The dog jumped on Sir Hugo and 

tore at his 19.The men saw the fiery eyes and 

the white 20.and blood running from the dog’s 

21.They ran away. No one 22. 

the body of Sir Hugo Baskerville. People said that the 

23.took him. 

Ever since that time, the Baskervilles have died strange 

2<.Many have died on the 

25.People believe that the gigantic dog 

killed them. This dog is the curse: it is called the Hound of the 

Baskervilles. Now there is only one Baskerville left alive - Sir Henry. 
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Dr Watson’s Map 

Complete the gaps with the correct word from the brackets. 

Dr Watson ‘(arrived / came) 

.arrived.at 

Grimpen Station by 2(train / 

coach) . 

Baskerville Hall is located about 

half a mile ‘(north / south) 

.of 

Grimpen Village. 

Dr Watson saw a ’(soldier / 

policeman) 

.on the 

road ‘(from / between) 

Gijjj -impen and Baskerville Hall. The driver said 

that a 6( prisoner / big doF=l).had escaped from 

Dartmoor Prison. 

High Tor is the 7(highest f lowest).place on the 

moor. There are “(roads/ paths).across the moor 

from Baskerville Hall. Mi ;rripit House is 9(east / west) 

.of LHigh Tor, and High Tor Farm is to the 

‘“(east / west). ..- just “(north / south) 

.of«""*Uoombe Tracey. Lafter Hall is situated 

roughly “(south-east / soi__ith-west).of Merripit 

House. 

Making Sentences 1 

Put the words in the correct order to make full sentences. 

1 BECAUSE HE HAD STOLEN HIS BOOTS SOMEONE 

WAS ANGRY. 

He was angry because someone had stolen his boots. 

2 DARTMOOR HAS A PRISON FROM ESCAPED PRISONER. 

3 BELIEVED SIR HENRY BASKERVILLE HOLMES SOMEONE 

TO MURDER THAT WANTED. 

4 BACKWARDS AND FORWARDS THE CANDLE MOVED 

BARRYMORE. 

5 ROCKY FROM THE MAN HAD FALLEN THE HILL. 

6 I AM TO SHOW THE MURDERER WAITING FOR HIMSELF. 

7 I FIRED THE BLACK SHAPE AT HOLMES AND BOTH 

OUR REVOLVERS. 

8 YOUR COUSIN HAS TAKEN THE GREAT GRIMPEN MIRE. 
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Making Sentences 2 

Write questions for the answers. 

1 Who were the Barrymores? 

The Barrymores were servants at Baskerville Hall. 

2 Why 

Stapleton lived on Dartmoor because he was a naturalist. 

3 Where 

The Stapletons lived in Merripit House. 

4 What 

The name of the escaped prisoner was Selden. 

5 Who 

Selden’s sister was Mrs Barrymore. 

6 How 

The Barrymores helped Selden by taking him food and clothes. 

7 Who 

Holmes was staying at High Tor Farm. 

8 Who 

Stapleton wanted to kill Sir Henry. 

9 Who 

Holmes, Watson and Inspector Lestrade saved Sir Henry. 

10 What 

Stapleton fell into the Great Grimpen Mire. 
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